WEST VIRGINIA NORTHERN COMMUNITY COLLEGE

STUDENT HANDBOOK

22 | 23



Table of Contents

INTRODUCTION AND CAMPUS INFORMATION	3
MISSION STATEMENT	4
VISION STATEMENT	4
WE VALUE:	4
COLLEGE ACCREDITATION AGENCY:	4
ABOUT WVNCC CAMPUSES	5
STUDENTS RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES	6
STUDENT SERVICES	9
FINANCIAL AID	18
STUDENT LIFE	22
STUDENT SPACES	25
STUDENT ACTIVITIES	27
SECURITY AND SAFETY	32
STUDENT SUPPORT SERVICES	35
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES	37

Introduction and Campus Information

Welcome:

President's Message

Welcome to West Virginia Northern Community College! This Student Handbook is your guide to information about the student services, college policies, and learning resources available here. We at Northern believe it is essential that students are aware of their privileges and responsibilities.

This Handbook contains information that will serve as a resource while you are a student. We hope this information makes your time here at Northern a positive learning experience. Every student is entitled to reaching full potential in a safe learning environment. This Handbook helps us achieve this goal.

Introduction

The administration, faculty, and staff of WVNCC welcome you to our college. We have prepared this Handbook to acquaint you with the policies and procedures that govern your education and student life here at Northern. WVNCC is a comprehensive community college with three campuses located in New Martinsville, Weirton, and Wheeling. It should be noted that information in this Handbook describes the general services provided by the College. Additional details can be found in the College Catalog or at our website, www.wvncc.edu.

Many programs, services and facilities are located on each of our three campuses. In some cases, a particular offering is provided only on one campus. If you have questions pertaining to services on a specific campus, you should contact your Academic Advisor, Student Success Coach, or stop-in the Service Center. WVNCC is firmly committed to student success and completion of your educational goal(s). We hope that the information provided in this Handbook helps you succeed at Northern.

Mission Statement

West Virginia Northern is a comprehensive community college that provides affordable, quality education and training for all who wish to learn. Northern strengthens our community and empowers individuals to pursue fulfilling lives.

Vision Statement

WVNCC will be a trusted and valued community partner in lifelong learning.

We will:

- Invest in human capital Invest in recruiting, onboarding, training, and employee development, cross-training succession planning, and employee satisfaction.
- Invest in technology to increase student success Invest in technology in key areas such as access, recruitment, and admission, advising, instruction, increasing student digital literacy, and improving student engagement.
- Implement an advising model that supports and improves student success Implement an advising model that addresses individual student needs, provides clear career pathways, and is adaptable to Early Entrance and nontraditional students.
- Expand and improve workforce and economic development in our region and beyond Expand and improve workforce education programs to prepare students for a regional and global labor market.
- Expand student diversity Enroll a more diverse mix of students.

We Value:

Learner Focused	Diversity	Inclusion
Lifelong Learning	Teamwork	Integrity
Transparency	Excellence	

College Accreditation Agency:

West Virginia Northern Community College is accredited by the Higher Learning Commission (HLC) through 2022-23.

The Higher Learning Commission

230 South LaSalle Street Suite 7-500 Chicago, IL 60604-1411

Phone: 800-621-7440 www.hlcommission.org

For a complete list of all WVNCC programs accreditation visit our website.

About WVNCC Campuses

On May 9, 1972, the West Virginia Board of Regents created a dual-campus community college out of what was formerly the Hancock County Branch and the Wheeling Campus of West Liberty State College. The Board specified that the newly created institution was to be a comprehensive community college responsible for educational programs of two years or less duration for high school graduates and adults. Responding to local community requests, the College began offering courses in New Martinsville in 1973 and established a campus there in 1975. In 1976, WVNCC began offering classes in Weirton with a campus built in 1985.

As a two-year comprehensive community college, Northern offers a wide variety of programs and courses in the arts and sciences, career-technical education, developmental studies, and community service. Under an open-door enrollment policy, the College admits all adults desiring postsecondary education. High school students recommended by their schools for early entrance are also admitted. Graduates receive Associate in Arts degrees, Associate in Science degrees, Associate in Applied Science degrees and Certificates.

Wheeling

1704 Market Street Wheeling, WV 26003-3643 304.233.5900

Weirton

150 Park Avenue Weirton, WV 26062-3797 304.723.2210

New Martinsville

141 Main Street New Martinsville, WV 26155-1211 304.455.4684

All three WVNCC campuses have been supported significantly by the communities which they serve. Each campus has an active Friends of the College component that volunteers time and raises funds for special projects to help the College. Students are urged to familiarize themselves with the location of the Service Center on their campus. Most questions can be handled by personnel at the Student Success Center in Wheeling, Weirton, and New Martinsville. You can also our website at wyncc.edu to learn more.

Students Rights and Responsibilities

Student Academic Rights:

- The right to be graded or have his/her performance evaluated solely upon performance in the coursework as measured against academic standards. The student shall not be evaluated prejudicially, capriciously, or arbitrarily. West Virginia Northern Community College, pursuant to the requirements of Titles IV, VI, and VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title IX of the Educational Amendments of 1972, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, does not discriminate against applicants, employees, or students on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, disability, age or national origin in its employment policies and/or educational programs or activities, including admissions to such. Inquiries concerning this policy should be directed to the Campus Counselor at an individual campus or by calling our Human Resources office.
- The right to have any academic penalty reviewed.
- The right to have access to a copy of the college catalog or program brochure in which current academic program requirements are described (e.g., required courses, total credit requirements, minimum grade point average, probation standards, professional standards, etc.).
- The right to receive from the instructor written descriptions of content and requirements for any course in which they are enrolled (e.g., attendance expectations, special requirements, laboratory requirements including time, field trips and costs, grading standards and procedures, professional standards, etc.).

Student Code of Conduct:

- The college will adopt a Student Conduct Code ("Code of Conduct") to promote and preserve standards of conduct as part of its educational mission for the benefit of all who are a part of the WVNCC community.
- The college will define procedures including sanctions, processes, timelines and appeals to be followed in disciplinary cases in order that cases may be handled in a timely manner while serving the interests of the college community and safeguarding the rights of all students. The established procedures will be reviewed and updated yearly and will be governed by applicable federal and state regulations and procedures.
- This rule includes but is not limited to all WVNCC owned or leased grounds, buildings, equipment and facilities and include the conduct of the students while utilizing these facilities, this includes changing methods of communication such as cell phones and social media at or about the College, which has the same laws, regulations, policies, and code of conduct that applies to all other services, activities, and functions at or concerning the College. The rule is also, in effect at all WVNCC sponsored events, including class field trips.

Student Grievance:

Initially, a student should pursue any concern about West Virginia Northern Community College (WVNCC) through the Student Grievance Process that WVNCC provides. Most complaints can be resolved at the college level. For information or questions about this procedure, contact the Vice President of Student Care and Success, 304-214-8845, <u>ifike@wvncc.edu</u>.

If your complaint is not resolved at the institution, you may present your complaint to the appropriate agencies below:

- If your complaint is associated with WVNCC's compliance with academic program quality and accrediting standards, you may file a complaint with the Higher Learning Commission, the agency that accredits the institution.
- If the complaint is in reference to a specific program that holds accreditation, you may contact the appropriate agency to register your complaint: College Accreditation Agencies.
- For all other complaints about WVNCC that are not about compliance with academic program quality and accrediting standards, you may file a complaint:
 - At the West Virginia Community and Technical College System or to the West Virginia State Attorney General.

Student Complaints:

- To comply with federal regulations and to contribute to the ongoing assessment of
- College excellence, the College will address student complaints in timely manner and in a way that demonstrates fairness and attention to student concerns. Formal written student complaints will be recorded in a log to meet the requirement of The Higher Learning Commission (HLC) regarding student complaints. Written complaints that have not been signed will not be entered into the log, unless a pattern involving a specific issue, division, department, or policy warrants an investigation.
- The log will include information about the disposition of student complaints, including those referred to external agencies for resolution. This log, with individual identities shielded, will be available to the Peer Review Team of the Higher Learning Commission for review. Written complaints forwarded to the College by the Higher Learning Commission will be tracked and recorded as part of this rule. The link is https://www.wvncc.edu/contact/wvncc-formal-complaint/7641.

Assessment of Student Academic Achievement:

• This is an important aspect of assuring achievement of state and national academic standards. This process includes the administration of standardized assessment measures that determine the achievement level of students at West Virginia Northern in specific areas and levels as compared with other students in similar levels and specialties across the country. These assessments are required of students; however, individual scores are not used as part of students' grades. Instead, it is information that permits the College to assess its strengths and needs to assure academic integrity in academic programs.

Assessments are administered to students completing A.A.S. degrees to assess job-related skills as compared to specific occupational standards. These assessments are scheduled at times to make it convenient for students to participate. Completion of state mandated assessments are a graduation requirement, and failure to comply with completion of required assessments can result in a "hold" on student records until completed.

Academic Integrity:

The College's academic program requirements are determined according to standards of each field, as recommended by qualified faculty in consultation with professionals in the field and approved by the Vice President of Academic Affairs, Curriculum Committee, and the President. Academic programs are approved by the WVNCC Board of Governors. All academic programs undergo a periodic program review involving professionals in the field and other educators with reports reviewed by the Board of Governors and CCTCE. Accredited programs undergo additional review and meet specific requirements for the professional accreditation. In addition to the specific academic course and program requirements, academic policies assure the integrity of the academic experience and degree.

Academic Honesty and Support of a Learning Environment:

All students are responsible for their own academic work and behavior that supports a learning environment. Dishonesty results in disciplinary action such as lower grade, failing grade, administrative withdrawal, program probation, suspension, or dismissal. Behavior which interferes with the rights or learning environment of others can result in administrative withdrawal, suspension, or dismissal. Students have rights to appeal such decisions consistent with rule.

Academic Integrity and Student Responsibilities:

This purpose of this Rule is to ensure academic integrity is maintained and ensure student responsibilities are defined. Rule: The College will establish procedures for academic integrity and student responsibility standards.

Plagiarism

This includes using someone else's ideas without giving credit to that person in an appropriate citation or using someone else's words without placing them in quotation marks and/or without identifying that person in an appropriate citation.

Cheating:

This includes such practices as receiving test answers from or giving test answers to another student, submitting another student's work or another source as one's own work (unless permitted to do so because of a joint assignment), stealing tests or test items, or using notes when not permitted.

Student Services

Each campus offers Student Services for our students to utilize while at Northern. Each campus has their own Student Service Center which offers a variety of service but not limited to the following:

Student Service Centers:

The Weirton and New Martinsville campus each have their own Student Service Center that is a one-stop shop to help all students with questions regarding: advising, accounting, academic records, admissions, financial aid, plus registration.

Student Success Center:

The Wheeling campus has a brand-new floor that is in the B&O building called the Student Success Center. The Student Success Center co-locates many student services in one space, making it easier for you to navigate your college experience. The space includes a walk-up service center, recruiting space, admissions, financial aid, advising, career services and more.

Academic Advising and Registration:

Advising and Registration are housed in our newly formed Action Center. The ACT in Action Center stand for Advising, Career and Transfer. This department will be essential every step of the way throughout your time at WV Northern.

Action Center:

The Action Center team is charged with providing accurate information and support regarding academic advising, career exploration, and transfer planning.

Advising:

Students are assigned to the Action Center on their campus upon admission. Students are to make initial appointments to understand their test scores, create an educational plan, select courses, confirm financial aid and tuition documentation, and interpret College policies. Advising Centers are open throughout the year.

Based on program of study, each degree-seeking student is assigned a faculty/academic advisor during their first semester. Academic Advisors help students assess their academic, career, and life goals. Academic advisor assignments are coordinated through the Admissions and Registrar's offices. A new Registration PIN is issued to each student each semester. The PIN is provided by the advisor prior to registration.

Career Services:

Career Services assist you in exploring career options, connecting with potential employers, career assessment, job fairs, conducting a job search, resume and interview preparation, preparing for your career and more.

Career Advising:

Individual career advising including free career assessments that assist in the identification of work interests, abilities, and values.

Career Resources and Occupational Information:

Online access to career resources including guides to writing resumes, cover letters, and interviewing techniques.

Occupational information including work tasks, potential job growth and salary information.

College Central:

The College provides students with a free online career management system, College Central. Students must self-register on College Central (All First Year Seminar students are preregistered but must complete the process to access their accounts). Once registered students have access to the College's online job board as well as a career resource library, podcasts, and videos.

Students can register for College Central by visiting www.collegecentral.com/wvncc/.

Job Postings:

Career Services maintains job listings for the College. These listings can be found online through the College Central website.

Events:

Workshops are offered on each campus on topics such as resume writing, interviewing skills, conducting a job search, etc. at the request of faculty and students. Career fairs and on campus recruiting events for local employers. All services and programs mentioned above are free to students. Students are required to register on College Central to receive job referrals.

Transfer:

West Virginia Northern students who complete an associate degree have many opportunities to continue to complete a bachelor's degree. WVNCC has many articulation agreements in place to help make the transfer as smooth as possible. The purpose of the following articulation agreements is to assist Northern students who are interested in transferring to local colleges and universities after completing academic programs at Northern. WVNCC currently has formalized agreements with several colleges, please use the catalog to view all articulation agreements. Northern is continuously adding transfer agreements for graduates, so students are advised to meet with their advisor or the transfer counselor to learn more. These agreements facilitate the transfer of academically qualified students; and, therefore, help Northern graduates gain junior admittance status at four-year institutions. Students are encouraged to work with the transfer counselor at both WVNCC and at the anticipated bachelor's degree-granting institution so together they can determine which classes are necessary to fulfill graduation requirements. In addition to the articulation agreements West Virginia has a Core Transfer Agreement with all the

public institutions in the state, follow this link to the most current agreement of courses which transfer as general education courses, this statewide agreement is updated yearly.

Placement:

Upon admission, all degree and certificate objective students are required to take course placement tests or provide documentation, for example through high school transcript grades within five years of high school graduation, for reading, writing, and mathematics to assess their current skills if ACT/SAT score are not available. If you have ACT/Sat, those can be provided instead of taking the placement test. If you need to take a placement testing, you can schedule it with the Academic Support Center on your campus. You may also sign a waiver to waive the test and be placed into an entry level English (097) or Math course.

Registration:

Registration for classes including changes and withdrawal of enrollment in specific courses must be initiated by the student through completion of the registration process. Documentation of prerequisites for entry into specific courses is required prior to registration also.

The College provides extensive dates and times for registration. All students must obtain a Registration Ticket from a Campus Service Center prior to meeting with the advising center or their faculty advisor. New students can register after meeting with the Action Center Counselor.

All students will register in their Northern on the Web (NOW) after meeting with their academic advisor and obtaining their alternate PIN. Information on a students' academic advisor is listed on their student portal.

N.O.W- Northern on the Web:

You will use your N.O.W. to complete the following tasks:

- Register for classes
- Add/Drop Courses
- Check financial aid award or status
- See an unofficial academic transcript
- Update your address, phone, and email.
- Student Bills/Payments

How to Register:

Schedule an appointment with the Action Center staff to plan your schedule by visiting the advising/registration webpage https://www.wvncc.edu/offices-and-services/academic-advising/2183.

Online Registration Instructions:

- 1. Select NOW Access from your WVNCC Student Portal
- 2. Go to Student Services and then click Registration
- 3. You can use Schedule planner as an option if you wish.

- 4. Add courses you want, add breaks to block off times you cannot attend class, and then click Generate to see your possible schedules.
- 5. Click View to see each schedule. From the View screen, click the Shopping Cart button.
- 6. Enter the registration PIN from your advisor.
- 7. You will see a Web Registered message when your schedule has been confirmed.
- 8. During your meeting, your advisor will provide you with a registration PIN so that you can create your schedule. Keep your PIN in case you need to make changes and contact your advisor if you have any questions.

Online Waitlist:

- 1. If a class is full, you can place yourself on the waitlist.
- 2. If a class is full, you will see a registration error of closed.
- 3. Click on the drop-down arrow under action and select waitlist; then click submit changes.
- 4. Check your WVNCC email daily to know if a space becomes available.
- 5. The notification email will provide directions on how to register for the waitlisted class.

To View a Copy of your Schedule from N.O.W:

- 1. Click Student Services.
- 2. Return to Registration and click Student Detail Schedule for the selected term.

Information Changes:

If you move, need to change your major, or change your name, you must submit these changes to the Student Success Center. You can Include your full name and Northern Identification number when making these changes

Change of Address:

To change your address, please do the following:

- 1. Log into your Student Portal
- 2. Select Address Information then find If this information Is incorrect, click here.
- 3. Fill out the blanks with the new information and click Request change.
- 4. Your address change will be sent to a representative in the Student Success Center who will manually change your address.

Change of Major:

Students intending to change their major must complete a change of major form. You will find this form online located <u>here</u>. The deadline ends to change your major at the end of the first week of full-term classes each semester.

Change of Name:

You must bring legal documentation to a Student Success Center on your campus. For example, these could be the following: marriage license, driver's license, court decrees, etc. Once, we receive documentation, the change will be made.

Class Attendance and Participation:

Although classes vary about requirements, activities, and instructional methods, attendance and active participation are the responsibility of students who wish to succeed. Students are expected to make progress and meet course expectations in time frames outlined by the instructor. During the first week of classes, students receive instructor expectations and should clarify any questions regarding these requirements. Instructors are eager to assist students toward success. It is the student's responsibility to consult with the instructor regarding attendance or participation problems to determine if alternative arrangements can be made. Failure to attend or actively participate can result in administrative withdrawal by the instructor.

Adding/Dropping Coursework:

Changes in registration are completed through your NOW account. Classes may be added to your schedule through NOW until midnight on the Sunday prior to the start of a course. Courses must be dropped online by the established deadlines. You are responsible for the changes made to your registration. Consult the academic calendar concerning deadline to drop courses. In addition, read the regulations regarding grades and refunds as well as financial aid, if applicable. Talk with your instructors and/or academic advisors prior to making such changes. Often, alternatives or supplementary assistance may be available which makes course completion possible. In addition, identify the impact of dropping specific courses on your financial aid, graduation, enrollment status, etc.

Course Requirements:

Faculty provide students with a syllabus for each course which contains important information about course content, objectives, grading, and attendance. You should attend the first class to make sure, that you understand what is expected.

Class Loads:

Full-time students are those students taking 12 or more credit hours during a fall or spring semester or six or more credit hours in a summer term. Note: You may be required to maintain 12 credits hours for your own personal insurance purposes, loan deferment or other special situations. Students receiving the Promise Scholarships must complete 15 credit hours per semester during Fall and Spring to maintain their scholarship. Additional information on Promise Scholarships is available at www.cfwv.com. To be eligible for full-time financial aid, students must be enrolled in 12 or more credit hours during a fall or spring semester.

Requesting an Academic Transcript:

Please refer to our website and click on transcript to order your academic transcript. All transcripts are sent through the National Student Clearinghouse. You can do so <u>here</u>.

• Note: To receive an academic transcript, all obligations to West Virginia Northern must be met - no outstanding fees, no outstanding library books, etc. **NO EXCEPTIONS.**

Course Substitutions:

Course substitutions for courses no longer offered by the College can be made by the department chair/program director administering the affected course, with the approval of the Provost. A Student Petition for Alteration in Graduation of Program Requirements should be completed and forwarded to the appropriate personnel for approval. Faculty advisors and/or counselors should make every effort to assist students in completing degree requirements in an efficient and timely manner.

Standards of Academic Progress:

Please refer to the college catalog under Standards of Academic Progress Rule for specific details.

Alteration in Graduation:

Petition for alteration in graduation and program requirements may be submitted by students who request a modification in course requirements when they can document that program competencies or general education goals have been met in other ways. This petition should be initiated by the student in consultation and with the approval of the academic advisor. OPTIONS: Substitution requests must be sent to the subject matter expert for review. Waiver requests must be sent to the program director as the program requirement expert for review.

Withholding Services because of Delinquent Accounts:

If you have delinquent accounts in the Business Office, Library, Financial Aid Office, Bookstore or elsewhere in the College, you will be denied College services such as grade reports, recommendations, evaluation of credit, official transcripts of credits earned at West Virginia Northern, registration for subsequent semesters and receipt of diploma. If you have any questions, contact your Campus Counselor.

Viewing Student Records:

West Virginia Northern Community College maintains student academic records in a secure manner to protect student rights as guaranteed by the amended Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974. If you wish to see your own records, you should write a letter indicating the records you wish to review to the Registrar. You will then be notified when and where you can review your records. Such review will take place within 45 days after your formal request. Should you wish to challenge the contents of your records, you must follow the College's Appeals Procedure. Refer to the Policies section of the College Catalog for specific details. Under the amended Family Educational Rights and Policy Act of 1974, the following records are excluded from this review:

- Financial records of your parents and information included therein.
- Confidential letters and statements in the records before Jan 1, 1985; if such letters or
- statements are used for purposes for which they were intended; and records for which
- you have signed a waiver to your reviewing privilege. In compliance with the Family

- Educational Rights Privacy Act, should you wish to have personal information released
- to another person, agency or organization, you must make this request in writing to the
- College officials who maintain those records. Written requests are to be submitted to
- the Campus Service Center on your campus. The request will be denied if the written
- release form has not been submitted. The College will release student information to
- the following without your written consent:
- College Officials
- Agencies specified in the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act; and
- Civil authorities having legal documents to request the information.
- Copies of the College's policy on complying with the Family Educational Rights and
- Privacy Act are available from the Campus Service Center.

Enrollment Verification:

West Virginia Northern Community College uses Degree Verify through the Student Clearinghouse to verify education attendance and graduation information. Please contact the Student Clearinghouse to obtain education and graduation information. Their web address is: www.studentclearinghouse.org.

Students who require enrollment verification, please log into the Student Portal, and click on the National Student Clearinghouse button.

Verification of attendance (health insurance, loan agencies, day care, OVRTA, good student discount, etc.) can be obtained by contacting the Records Office located in the B&O Building.

Graduation Requirements / Certificate or Degree Program:

Program requirements in the catalog at the time a student is admitted in an academic degree program will be utilized for certification that a student has completed appropriate degree requirements for graduation provided that graduation requirements are completed within five years. Students may elect to meet program requirements in the current catalog, provided all requirements in the current catalog are followed. Students who do not complete graduation requirements within five years will follow the catalog in effect at the beginning of the sixth year or the year of subsequent re-enrollment. It should be noted that students who do not take West Virginia Northern courses for two consecutive semesters (excluding summer) will be required to complete a new admission application for re-admission and will follow the program requirements in effect at the time of readmission.

Students are urged to work with the academic program advisor concerning any questions regarding graduation requirements. Part-time students who complete courses over a number of semesters will need to plan carefully since programs are frequently updated to maintain currency in career requirements. Substitutions for courses no longer offered by the College may need to be made.

The Records Office certifies students have completed all academic requirements for the awarding of the degree. If an academic program is terminated, students impacted will be notified in accordance with Council for Community and Technical College Education and Higher Education Policy Commission procedures, and the College will offer the courses needed by

currently enrolled students and assist the currently enrolled students in completing the degree program. Generally, a two-year program will continue for a year after the decision for termination is made.

Graduation Requirements:

All students who graduate from West Virginia Northern will document completion of the following requirements in addition to those required for specific degrees:

- Earn the minimum number of credit hours of academic credit required in the individual's degree program in the specific courses required as certified by the program faculty.
- Demonstrate basic proficiency in reading, English and math as evidenced by demonstration of proficiency on placement tests or completion of the required supplemental coursework and program coursework prerequisites.
- Achieve a 2.0 or higher cumulative grade point average on all college work that is not excluded in the computation of GPA because of applying other West Virginia Northern policies such as that for outdated coursework.
- Complete a minimum of 15 semester hours of credit at West Virginia Northern Community College, including the Board of Governors and Occupational Development programs (an exception for Board of Governors major student.
- Fulfill all obligations to the College.
- Complete a First-Year Seminar course within the first year of enrollment. This requirement is limited to students entering Northern as first-time freshmen.
- Complete all college-level courses with a grade of "D" or better unless requirements that are more rigorous are required for a specific major.

Commencement ceremonies are conducted in May at the conclusion of the spring semester. Students who have completed graduation requirements during that year are invited to participate. Specific information is provided when students are provisionally certified for graduation. Arrangements for graduation robes, announcements, and other items should be made through the school's chosen vendor. Diploma covers are presented to those attending the commencement ceremony. Diplomas are mailed to graduates once all degree requirements are certified.

Academic Honors:

Students achieving academic success are recognized each semester by three distinctions. The deadline for being recognized for fall honors is February 1, and for spring honor recognition is September 1. The deadline for updating honors on academic transcripts is May 1 for fall courses and December 1 for spring courses. These academic honors are:

Merit List: is for students who earn at least six semester hours in credit classes and have a semester grade point average of 3.25 or higher, including courses numbered below 100 in this catalog.

Dean's List: is for students who earn at least nine semester hours in credit classes and have a semester grade point average of 3.5 or higher, excluding courses numbered below 100 in this catalog.

President's List: is for students who earn at least 12 semester hours in credit classes and have a semester grade point average of 4.0, excluding grades earned in courses numbered below 100 in this catalog.

Financial Aid

West Virginia Northern Community College offers several types of financial assistance to aid students in meeting educational expenses. More than 90 percent of the financial aid awards are granted based on demonstrated financial need; however, the College also offers awards based on academic and extracurricular performance. After applying for admission, students may apply for financial assistance.

Types of Financial Aid Available

Federal Grants and State Scholarships:

- Federal Pell Grants
- Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant
- West Virginia Higher Education Grant
- West Virginia Invests Grant
- Higher Education Adult Part-Time Student Grant (HEAPS)
- Pennsylvania State Grant
- The West Virginia PROMISE Scholarship
- The West Virginia Engineering, Science and Technology Scholarship
- West Virginia Nursing Scholarship Program

Work-Study:

• Federal Work-study Program.

Loans:

- Federal Direct Loan (subsidized and unsubsidized).
- Federal Direct PLUS Loan.

Always review the Financial Aid Office webpage at www.wvncc.edu/offices-and-services/financial-aid/642 for updates to available financial aid funds.

Applying for Financial Aid:

- Complete and submit a FAFSA (Free Application for Federal Student Aid)
- Complete a WVNCC Financial Aid Application for the school year you wish to receive aid.
- Watch your e-mail account and/or mailbox for the notifications you will receive from the Federal Student Aid division of the U.S. Department of Education and our office after your FAFSA is submitted and processed. Review your FAFSA data carefully. If needed, make any corrections to your FAFSA information in accordance with instructions provided.
- A portion of all FAFSA applicants is selected by Federal Student Aid each year to have their FAFSA data verified. If chosen, the Financial Aid Office will notify you. Be sure to promptly submit all requested documents and/or clarifications so that we may efficiently process your financial aid file for you.

- Check your NOW account for any additional documents that may be required.
- If you are experiencing difficulties, please stop by the Financial Aid Office or your Campus Service Center for assistance. You may also contact the Financial Aid Office by email at FinancialAidOffice@WVNCC.edu or 304-233-5900 option 3.
- Please read and respond to all mailed or e-mailed correspondence. If you're unsure how to respond or what to do, please let us know!
- Please note that full-time enrollment (12 or more undergraduate credit hours per semester) is required to disburse 100% of your semester Pell Grant award. A Pell Grant award will be pro-rated for less than Full-time enrollment. Half-time enrollment (6 or more undergraduate credit hours per semester) is required to disburse Federal Direct Loans.
- Once we package your financial aid, you will receive an award letter notifying you of your aid for each semester.
- Credit balances/Title IV Refunds from federal funds after all tuition/fees/books/supply
 charges are paid will be available as scheduled each term. Please see the Schedule of
 Classes for your term to review the processing dates.

Paying for classes using Financial Aid:

- Financial Aid is paid based on your class registration and attendance. Your file must be complete to for Financial Aid to pay. If you need to verify, then please use financialaidoffice@wvncc.edu for questions.
- You should know the following:
 - O You WILL receive a bill for your tuition
 - All charges will be taken from the financial aid before a refund check is issued. It is the student's responsibility to make sure that their tuition is paid.

Tuition and Fees:

Tuitions and fees are approved by the West Virginia Community College and Technical Education System. All Ohio residents are eligible for in-state tuition rates. Our metro rate is for the following counties: Allegheny, Beaver, Butler, Greene, and Washington counties in Pennsylvania. Early Entrance students take college classes are eligible for a discounted rate.

Payment of Tuition and Fees:

Payment of tuition must accompany registration during regular registration periods. During designated early registration periods, you may register and have payment deferred until a prepaid selected date which is prior to general registration.

Payment Plans:

West Virginia Northern Community College offers an interest-free, monthly payment option to assist students in paying tuition and fees. A setup fee of \$20 is charged and allows students to spread payments over four months. For additional information, contact your local service student service center.

Book Vouchers:

Financial Aid book vouchers begin on average two weeks before the start of semester classes. To be on the Akademos book voucher list you must have your financial aid file complete and have funding more than tuition and fees. To use the book voucher, you must purchase your books through Akademos during each semester's specific voucher period.

Akademos (Online Bookstore):

Created in partnership with Akademos, Inc. and powered by TextbookX, the Online Bookstore simplifies the textbook ordering process for students and professors while providing them with a variety of physical and digital textbook formats. It also sells branded items like clothing, mugs, and more!

WVNCC's online bookstore offers:

- Branded Northern merchandise like clothing, hats, and mugs!
- Quick ordering process complete your entire order in 5 minutes
- New, used, eBook, & rental textbook formats
- An average savings of 60% off list price on Marketplace items
- Price match guarantee on new books
- Free shipping on retail orders over \$49 (not including Marketplace)
- Year-round access to post and sell any textbook on the website's Marketplace you name the price

If you have questions, please use this link: WVNCC.TextbookX.com/Help

Tuition and Financial Aid Credit Refunds:

Only in cases where the College cancels class or a student withdraws prior to the first day of the semester, or prior to the first day of class for classes beginning later in the semester, will full tuition be refunded. Refunds are automatically computed only for students who totally and officially withdraw from all courses during the refund period.

For students who totally withdraw from classes (excluding administrative withdrawals), a percentage of tuition only, based on total tuition charges, will be refunded following the schedule below. Fees are not refundable. If a student has been making payments according to a payment plan, the refund percentage is based on the full amount of tuition originally owed at the beginning of the semester.

- Classes cancelled by the College 100% refund
- Prior to the first day of the semester 100% refund
- Week One & Two 90% refund
- Week Three & Four 70% refund
- Week Five & Six 50% refund
- After Week Six No refund

A refund schedule for summer sessions and nontraditional periods shall be determined by the College's Business Office based upon the refund rate for the academic year and will be calculated using the following schedule:

• Prior to the first day of the term: 100% refund

• During the first 10% of the term: 90% refund

• From 14% to 25% of the term: 75% refund

• From 26% to 38% of the term: 50% refund

• After 38% of the term is completed: No refund

In doing the calculation, should the percentage calculation identify a partial day, the entire day will be included in the higher refund period. Fees are refunded only if classes are dropped during the 100 percent refund period. Students participating in federal financial aid programs will have their aid adjusted according to the federal Return of Funds policy. See "Federal Return of Funds Policy" in the current college catalog.

We have partnered with BankMobile to deliver your financial aid refund. For more information about BankMobile, visit this link: http://bankmobiledisbursements.com/refundchoices/.

Student Life

Severe Weather/Emergency Closing

West Virginia Northern operates on the premise that classes will be held on a regularly scheduled basis. In the event of severe weather conditions or emergencies, each campus will determine if classes are to be delayed or canceled. Local media will be notified as soon as a decision is made.

Class Cancellations:

In the event of:

- All day classes are canceled classes with a starting time up to 4:59 p.m. are canceled.
- All evening classes are canceled classes with a starting time of 5 p.m. or after are canceled.
- **Delayed start**: A set starting time will be included in the various announcements.
 - o For example, classes will start at 10 a.m. or delayed start-classes start at 10 a.m.
 - Action: All classes which are scheduled to begin prior to 10 am are cancelled. Any class with a scheduled starting time of 10 am or after will be in session as scheduled. Any exceptions to the above will be communicated by your instructor(s).
 - o Another example: Classes will start at 11:00 am Delayed start-classes start at 11:00 am 3-hour delay
 - Action: All classes which are scheduled to begin prior to 11:00 am are cancelled. Any class with a scheduled starting time of 11:00 am or after will be in session as scheduled. Any exceptions to the above will be communicated by your instructor(s).
- **Dismissal**: All classes after a specific time will be canceled and any classes currently in session will be dismissed as indicated by your instructor.
- Individual Class Cancellation: instructors may occasionally need to cancel a specific class for a specific time. Students are to refer to the class syllabus for details regarding a specific class cancellation.

Communication Methods:

The college will communicate all class cancelations, delays, or dismissal via the following platforms: WTOV9/WTRF, social media, text messages via our alert system and a banner on our website.

The College Catalog:

The Catalog is the official document of the Institution in relation to program offerings, policies, and other related natters. You can find the catalog on our website at wvncc.edu.

College Directory:

You can find the College's directory on our website.

Identification Cards (IDs):

ID cards are issued to all registered students. An ID card will be issued free of charge to all students. ID cards are issued with a photograph (taken by college personnel), student's name and semester code. The library does not require a separate student ID. If the patron has no student ID (Early Entrance, community), then the library will issue a separate card. If your card gets stolen or lost, please report to the Student Success Center immediately. There is no fee for a replacement ID. The ID card is a student's permanent West Virginia Northern Community College identification card and must be presented to college officials upon request. The ID card is issued for the duration of a student's experience at the College. An ID card is not transferrable. The card is the property of West Virginia Northern Community College and, as such, can be confiscated if there is any misuse, forgery, or alteration on the ID card. The student may also be subject to disciplinary action.

Parking:

The College maintains parking lots on all three campuses. Students wishing to park on campus must obtain appropriate vehicle registration tags once each academic year. All students who enroll are entitled to a vehicle tag permit. Having a vehicle tag permit, however, does not assure students of a parking space. Vehicles parked in restricted areas may be ticketed or towed at the owner's expense. Violation of the College's parking regulations will result in towing, a ticket and/or other penalties. When driving to classes, you should allow enough time to find legal parking spaces. Metered and off—street parking is available near each campus. You should respect private parking areas. Vehicles parked in restricted areas may be towed at the owner's expense. If you park in non-College owned lots, you are responsible for knowing and following the regulations for use of these facilities. Handicapped Parking is available and requires a valid handicapped parking tag as well as a current WVNCC parking permit. Handicapped parking tags are provided by the State Department of Motor Vehicles and are obtained by application with a doctor's certification. Handicap spaces are available in all our parking lots campus wide.

The only students that need parking passes are those students who have classes on the Wheeling campus. You can fill out the Parking Permit form on the <u>website</u>. You will pick your tag up at the Student Success Center. You can also find a parking map on our <u>website</u>.

The College assumes no liability for theft or damage to personal property or vehicles while parked in college parking lots or any other area. Cars should be locked, and items always secured. Students should report theft or damage to the police officer on duty or Student Service Center as soon as possible.

Food Services:

Vending Services are available on all campuses. The Wheeling campus has a designated Snack Depot on the first floor of the B&O building with vending machines, seating, a microwave and more. Each campus has local restaurant options around them if time allows the students to leave campus.

Fitness and Recreational Facilities:

Located in the Education Center, the College has a multipurpose room with a NCAA regulation basketball and volleyball court as well as table tennis. Students are permitted to use these facilities during open hours. Availability of the MPR is subject to classes and scheduled events. Students may check out equipment with the Office of Student Activities. Individuals using the MPR must be students; any outside group or organization wanting to use the space should contact the Director of Academic Operations.

Also in the Education Center, past the MPR, you will find a fitness center. The fitness center is opened to all staff, faculty, and students. This space is fully equipped with the appropriate workout equipment, TVs, yoga mats and more.

New Martinsville campus students are welcomed to sign up for a 20% discounted membership at Prodigy Wellness.

Lockers:

Lockers are available for student use on the Wheeling, Weirton, and New Martinsville campuses. The locker rental fee will be published each year. Students arrange for lock rental on the Weirton and New Martinsville campus by contacting the Student Service Center. On the Wheeling Campus, all locker rental agreements are handled through the business office. In New Martinsville and Weirton, they are located on the second floor. Students must complete a locker rental agreement and pay a nonrefundable fee on a per semester basis. Locks will be removed the Monday after final examinations each semester. Lockers not cleared will have locks removed and their contents will become property of the College. The College is not responsible for any locker items. Intoxicants, drugs, firearms, and contraband in any form are prohibited on college property, including in lockers.

Housing:

There are no housing options on campus.

Health Care:

West Virginia Northern does not maintain student health insurance or health care facilities. You are encouraged to acquire health care and accident insurance if you are not covered by your parents' or personal insurance plans. Student insurance coverage can be obtained through local independent agents. The cost of medical treatment or support in the event of illness or injury is your responsibility. Students becoming injured or seriously ill at the College or in facilities used by the College must seek professional medical care and be responsible for any expense.

Student Spaces

Wheeling Campus

Lounges, Study Spaces & Vending.

EC 2nd Floor Lounge - Education Center / 10 17th Street Study space with vending options.

Lobby- 1st Floor, B&O Building/ 1704 Market Street
Study space with vending options down the hall.
Snack Depot - 1st Floor, B&O Building / 1704 Market Street
Vending area with tables for snacking and studying.

ITC Student Lounge - 1st Floor, Industrial Technology Center / 1803 Eoff Street Study space with vending options and TV.

ATC Student Lounge-1st Floor, Applied Technology Center/1535 Market Street

Study space with food options plus foosball.

Tutoring & Educational Resources

Library - 2nd Floor, B&O Building / 1704 Market Street

A wide variety of educational resources, both in print and digital, are available for use by students, faculty, and staff. Plus, study areas and even group-study reservable rooms.

Academic Support Center (ARC) - 2nd Floor, B&O Building / 1704 Market Street Tutoring, accessibility, advising, and more! The ARC can help you have a successful semester. Across the hall is the testing area and study room.

Fitness Center

Wheeling Fitness Center & Gym - 1st Floor, Education Center / 10 17th Street Gym, fitness center and locker rooms, which are available to WVNCC students for free.

New Martinsville Campus

Lounges, Study Spaces & Vending

Student Lounge - 1st Floor, New Martinsville Campus / 141 Main Street

Lounge equipped with seating and study areas, plus a microwave and vending to provide a relaxing experience between classes.

Tutoring & Educational Resources

Library - 1st Floor

A wide variety of educational resources, both in print and digital, are available for use by students, faculty, and staff. Plus, study areas and even group-study reservable rooms.

Academic Support Center (ARC) - 1st Floor

Tutoring, accessibility, advising, and more! The ARC can help you have a successful semester.

Fitness Center

New Martinsville - Partnership with Prodigy Wellness Center / 313 N Main St

20% discount for students on the New Martinsville campus. Student ID is needed for signup.

Weirton Campus

Lounges, Study Spaces & Vending

Student Lounge - 1st Floor, Weirton Campus / 150 Park Avenue

Lounge equipped with seating and study areas, plus a microwave and vending to provide a relaxing experience between classes.

Vending Area - 1st Floor, Weirton Campus / Across from Service Center

Vending area with tables for snacking and studying.

Tutoring & Educational Resources

Library - 1st Floor

A wide variety of educational resources, both in print and digital, are available for use by students, faculty, and staff. Plus, study areas and even group-study reservable rooms.

Academic Support Center (ARC) - 1st Floor

Tutoring, accessibility, advising, and more! The ARC can help you have a successful semester.

Student Activities

Mission:

The Mission of Student Activities at West Virginia Northern is to create student learning, and development opportunities through social, academic, cultural, and civic engagement on and off campus. Students not only have fun on campus, but also develop interpersonal, organizational, and leadership skills all the while aiming to become ambassadors of positive social change in the future well after they've graduated WVNCC. Participation in co-curricular activities, organizations, and clubs is considered an integral aspect of a well-rounded education. As such, we offer opportunities for students to gain hands-on leadership experience through positions such as the Student Government Association and Campus Activities Board, opportunities to became active in our vibrant communities through community service and service-learning events, and the ability to join (or create) a student club or organization. These are in addition to our many educational, cultural, and social student events that take place throughout the year.

You can find information about upcoming events by:

- Following us on social media
- Student Newsletter
- Viewing the calendar on our website
- Downloading the WVNCC GO App
 - Download our free app today to receive real-time alerts, catch up on news, view upcoming events and track important dates. The WVNCC GO App also provides access to search for team contacts, finding directions to our locations and more!
 - You can download it through the Apple Store or the Google Play store.
- LCD screens

Student Government Association (Tri-Campus):

• The West Virginia Northern Community College Student Government Association provides unique opportunities for students to build relationships, enhance leadership skills, become civically engaged, and maximize their college experiences. All aspects of the Student Government Association are advised and supported by the Office of Student Activities.

The specific functions of the Student Government Association are:

- to plan, promote and execute student activities, to stimulate student involvement with the college, and to recognize and assist other student groups
- to represent all students, and the college in the state level and in community service activities
- to select students for college standing committees, to make comments on issues, express student opinions on policies, and to initiate college wide discussion on student issues
- to organize and assist individual Campus Activities Boards

Duties of the Student Government Association Executive Board:

- to provide representation for the exchange of the student views on the issues of education and student life with the college administration
- to encourage awareness of student rights and responsibilities
- to encourage responsible suggestions from students in the policy and decision-making process of education and student life and refer these to the college administration
- to consider any proposal made by a student at regular meetings and to forward such to the proper administrative authorities
- to review concerns of individuals and student organizations and refer them to the entire SGA for deliberation or to the appropriate college administrators
- to meet at the discretion of the SGA President when special events dictate the necessity of a special meeting.

Membership:

Membership of the Student Government Association includes all students regularly enrolled at West Virginia Northern Community College. Voting representatives of this group consists of at least nine senators, one student representative to the Board of Governors, and one representative to the State Advisory Council of Students. Of these nine senators, at least four will come from Wheeling, three from New Martinsville, and three from Weirton. Each campus will receive one additional senator per one hundred full time equivalents (FTE).

SGA representatives must have a cumulative grade point average of 2.0 and must maintain enrollment of no less than six credit hours on the campus from which the member was elected. When program requirements mandate that the student attend another campus, resulting in the hours being split between two or more campuses, the student must declare a home campus. A home campus may be declared by submitting a letter to the Director of Student Activities. To be eligible a student cannot have any prior violations of the student code of conduct.

Meetings:

The SGA meetings are held once a month TBD by the SGA Officers. All meetings will be held via ZOOM. All meetings are open to the student body, faculty, staff, and administration.

The student body of each campus shall elect their respective senators. The combined student body of all three campuses shall elect the Board of Governors Representative and the Representative to the Advisory Council of Students. Officers of the SGA will be elected by all current senators.

Elections:

Elections will be held the third or fourth week of April or if not, enough candidates it will run the third week of September. The exact date and time will be set by the SGA in consultation with the Director of Student Activities. A term runs from May 1st to April 30th of the following year. All students wishing to run for election need to include the SGA application and three references.

The student body of each campus elects its respective senators. The combined student body of all three campuses elects the Board of Governors Representative and the Representative to the Advisory Council of Students. The Executive Board of the SGA will be elected by all current senators.

Starting A Club or Student Organization:

A student group wishing to receive official recognition and support from the college must be recognized as a Student Club/Organization by the Office of Student Activities. The Office of Student Activities will assist any student wishing to start a new club by supplying the required application and general guidelines, as well as general advice on best practices.

Current clubs can be found on our website under Student Life.

E-Sports Club:

WVNCC is proud to have a E-sports club on all three campuses. Esports is a competitive, organized video gaming. The college has purchased all equipment and will begin the club starting in Fall of 2022.

Honorary Societies:

Phi Theta Kappa:

The Omega Epsilon Chapter was chartered at West Virginia Northern Community College on February 22, 1973, less than one year after the college was established.

Membership in Phi Theta Kappa is conferred on community college students who have established a record of academic excellence as adjudged by the college faculty. Initiates must also be of good moral character and possess qualities of good citizenship. The purpose of Phi Theta Kappa is to cultivate fellowship among students at two-year colleges through the United States.

National Technical Honor Society:

The National Technical Honor Society is an educational non-profit that exists to honor, recognize, and empower students and teachers in Career & Technical Education. Student membership is open to high school, technical school, and college students who are enrolled in career and technical education programs.

Campus Activities Board (CAB):

Each of WVNCC's three campuses has a Campus Activities Board (CAB) that plans and implements student activities, alongside the Director of Student Activities, ranging from family programming to events such as a community concert and/or carnival.

CAB is open to all West Virginia Northern students!

Sports:

WVNCC provides various sport activities for men and women to participate at the collegiate level through Club, Recreational, and Intramural sporting opportunities. WVNCC Sporting Opportunities have included: Basketball, Flag Football, Volleyball, and other intramural opportunities.

To be eligible to participate in WVNCC Club, Recreational, and Intramural Sports Program(s) you must be a currently enrolled WVNCC student.

Special Note: Club Sport participants must be enrolled in a minimum of 3 Credit Hours.

Student Activity Events:

If classes are cancelled, all student activity events will also be cancelled and possibly rescheduled. The college will use the text alert system to notify of cancellations.

College Committees:

Students could sit on these college committees if they chose to do so:

• Academic Appeals Committee:

The Academic Appeals Committee convenes as needed to hear student appeals involving academic matters. The Faculty Assembly will select a minimum of six faculty for the committee representing all divisions and campuses. No division chair or program director may serve on the committee. Upon the filing of an academic appeal, the provost will constitute a committee to hear the appeal consisting of three (3) faculty from the faculty on the committee and two students recommended by the Campus Operations Manager on the campus where the appeal originated if from Weirton or New Martinsville Campuses or the Vice President of Student Services if from the Wheeling Campus. In a grade appeal, one faculty member must be from the discipline of the course in question or a related discipline. In a program dismissal appeal, one faculty member must be from the academic department housing the program.

• Academic Judicial Board:

The Academic Judicial Board is convened as needed to hear disciplinary matters involving students. It consists of three faculty, one from each campus, and one alternate from each campus, appointed by the Faculty Assembly; administrative staff member appointed by the President who will serve as Chair; and three students, one from each campus and one alternate from each campus appointed by the Student Senate.

• Assessment Committee:

The Assessment Committee is charged with monitoring and guiding the implementation of the College's Assessment Plan, (i.e. developing, maintaining, evaluating and modifying as needed, all assessment goals and activities). The committee will meet with and suggest criteria and guidelines for other assessment groups, as identified in the Assessment Plan. The Faculty Assembly will select a minimum of six faculty to serve two-year terms with staggered terms. The committee will select two staff members who are versed in assessment to serve on

the committee. The provost will appoint a faculty member as the committee chair.

• Curriculum Committee:

O The Curriculum Committee develops and/or reviews proposals submitted by faculty, staff, or administration and makes recommendations to the Provost for changes in course descriptions or outcomes, or program descriptions or outcomes. The committee also reviews proposals and makes recommendations regarding the adoption of new programs, discontinuation of existing programs, and development of articulation agreements, assuring that those proposals and agreements meet standards set forth by the faculty, the institution, and the state of West Virginia.

• Institutional Technology Committee:

The Institutional Technology Committee is specifically charged to: 1) review and develop recommendations regarding policies and procedures related to the College's technology development and use, and 2) communicate committee work to faculty, staff, and students and provide input from these constituencies to the committee.

• Library/LRC Committee:

The committee advises the Director of Libraries on policy and acquisitions, assists in promoting use of the LRC's and the services of the librarians among faculty, and serves as a liaison to bring comments about the functioning of the LRC's from faculty to the Director. The committee is comprised of five faculty selected by the Faculty Assembly and one student selected by the Student Senate.

• Mental Health and Wellness Committee:

o WVNCC recognizes that non-academic challenges are often a bigger barrier to student success than academic performance. The Mental Health and Wellness Committee is charged with investigating mental health issues that may affect student success and making recommendations on how the institution may help students with these challenges. Additionally, the committee may propose wellness programming to benefit students and personnel.

• Scholarship Committee:

o The Scholarship Committee evaluates scholarship applications and selects or makes recommendations to the Financial Aid office on initial recipient.

• Student Appeals Committee (for Non-Academic Matters):

 The Student Appeals Committee is convened to hear student appeals involving non-academic matters. Recommendations are forwarded to the Vice President of Student Services.

Security and Safety

West Virginia Northern is committed to providing and promoting a safe and secure environment that is compatible with the Institutions academic and co-curricular beliefs and visions. You are responsible for your individual actions and continued support to participate in reporting any suspicious activity or crime immediately. WVNCC complies with all applicable state and federal laws.

If you see signs of crime or a threat to you or other's safety, please report it immediately to a campus security liaison (only applicable for Wheeling and Weirton), a member of the Safety Committee (a list of members can be found on our website), campus counselor, campus service center staff, local law enforcement, or any other college official. A crime report will be made to ensure that nothing similar happens and to limit opportunities of threats to safety and security.

The Wheeling and Weirton Campuses have a Campus Security Liaison. The Wheeling campus has a full-time police officer on duty from 10am-6pm daily. The officer is responsible for patrolling campus, buildings, enforcing campus regulations, providing escorts as needed, securing, and maintaining required records related to safety and security among other assigned duties. The Wheeling campus has an off-duty officer patrol the building from 6pm-10pm Monday thru Thursday. If you need help or an escort after hours, please call 304-650-9996. If you need to call the day officer, please call 304-650-9994.

Weirton has a campus security liaison that is there Monday through Friday or when needed. If you need to get ahold of the officer for any reason, please call 304-748-1142.

The New Martinsville campus is located near the municipal law enforcement offices. Any students are to report threats or crimes to the campus manager.

A few tips to help you improve your safety are as follows:

- 1. Take the most direct and safest route to your destinations.
- 2. Lock your vehicles while away.
- 3. Walk with other people whenever possible.
- 4. Make yourself familiar with the Campus Security Liaison and if they have an office note where that is.
- 5. If you see something out of place, tell someone.

Copies of the WVNCC Crime and Awareness and Campus Security report are found <u>here</u> or by requesting it at a local Student Service Center.

Closing the College:

The President of the College has the authority to close the College during the period when emergency conditions exist. Local or State Public Safety Officials help with the determination as well.

The college will follow the Emergency College Closing Procedure:

- Closing the College refers to the times all buildings are locked, and personnel and students do not report, except *essential personnel. If the College is closed, all internal and external activities will be canceled.
- After the President or designee has determined the need to close the College/campuses one or more of the communication tools listed below will be activated to inform employees of a College Emergency Closing. The President or designee has the authority to determine the operations of the College even during a State of Emergency, a delay or a non-report of State employees, issued by the Governor.
 - 1. Text Alert System
 - 2. Email-Details specific to employees will be sent to employees.
 - 3. Web site (www.wvncc.edu)- WATCH Text Alert on screen display

WVNCC Texting System:

WVNCC uses a texting system called RAVE. This system is used to immediately notify students, staff, and faculty in an emergency, a weather alert affecting the College, or campus closing. Everyone will receive all emergency notifications for ALL campuses detailing the campus that is affected.

Alcohol and Drug-Free Environment:

The purpose of this rule is to assure compliance with the Drug-Free Schools and Communities Act of 1989 and the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988. This rule applies to the entire College community, including students, faculty, staff, and visitors to any of the campuses or classroom buildings.

Standards of Conduct: The unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession or use of illicit drugs and unauthorized use of alcohol on West Virginia Northern Community College property or as a part of any College activity is prohibited. It is prohibited to come to work, class or any College-sponsored function under the influence of alcohol or illicit drugs.

Disciplinary Sanctions: Consistent with College, local, State and Federal laws, the College will impose disciplinary sanctions for violation of the standards of conduct outlined above and prohibited in the Drug-Free Schools and Communities laws.

Violations could result in expulsion from school, termination of employment and/or referral to law enforcement agencies as is consistent with college rules. Federal trafficking penalties include substantial fines and imprisonment up to life. West Virginia law provides for penalties dependent on the classification of the substance, the activity involved and other convictions. The most severe penalties are for possession with intent to sell.

Tobacco Free Environment Rule:

The College has a responsibility to its employees and students to provide a safe and healthy environment. In support of this responsibility, the College has established the following rule regarding tobacco use on campus property:

- Tobacco use, which includes but is not limited to smoking, chewing, rubbing and the use of electronic tobacco devices, is prohibited on all college owned, leased, or operated property, buildings, and vehicles. This will include any public sidewalks within 25 feet radius of college entrances/exits. Organizers and attendees at public events, such as conferences, meetings, public lectures, social events, and cultural events, using college facilities will be required to abide by the College Tobacco-Free Campus rule. Organizers of such events are responsible for communicating and enforcing this rule to attendees.
- The sale of or free distribution of tobacco products on campus is prohibited. This includes the delivery of tobacco products to campus by means of delivery services of any kind.
- Campus organizations are prohibited from accepting money or gifts from tobacco companies. All tobacco advertising in public spaces, such as billboards and signs is prohibited. Accepting revenue for advertising tobacco products is inconsistent with the mission of this rule. Course learning materials which reference tobacco products, is acceptable, if the materials do not promote the use of tobacco.
- Tobacco advertisements are prohibited in college-run publications.

Enforcement of this rule will depend on the cooperation of all members of the campus community, both to comply and encourage others to do so. Faculty, staff, and students who see individuals smoking or using tobacco products are asked to inform these individuals in a professional and courteous manner that College rule prohibits tobacco use anywhere on grounds. Offenders are to be reported to the Chief Human Resource Office on the Wheeling campus and the Campus Managers on the Weirton and New Martinsville Campus.

Initial rule violations will be responded to with education. Repeated violations may be subject to appropriate disciplinary actions in accordance with the student code of conduct and the employee disciplinary action rule for faculty, administrators, and staff. Visitors who violate the rule will be informed that WVNCC is a tobacco-free campus. Visitors who continue to violate the rule following a warning will be escorted off campus.

Firearms Policy:

Firearms, explosives, weapons of deadly force, or other weapons of mass destruction are not allowed on property except for legally authorized law enforcement officials.

Student Support Services

E-mail Accounts:

The college assigns an email account to all degree seeking, non-degree, transient and continuing education program of study students. All student e-mails will be given out in their initial acceptance packet sent out from the Admissions office. Official correspondence from the college is sent to your @mail.wvncc.edu email account, so it is critical that you set up and monitor this account.

WVNCC Student Portal:

My WVNCC Student Portal provides students with single sign-on access to student web services, such as Northern on the Web (N.O.W.), D2L Brightspace Learning System, Student Email, and more. Instructions to log into your student portal can be found in your Let's Get Started Guide or on our website under current students.

If you have issues with your student portal, please visit the following website: https://www.wvncc.edu/offices-and-services/student-portal-issues/7236.

Use of Information Technology Resources:

Please refer to the Board of Governors Rule NC-7001. You can find it on our website. WV Northern Community College reserves the right at any time to alter these Terms of Use. Any changes will be effective immediately upon notice which we may provide by means including, without limitation, posting on the site or email.

Academic Resource Center:

304.214.8923 | arc@wvncc.edu |

West Virginia Northern Community College campuses provide student support through the Academic Resource Center (ARC) which consists of accessibility services, library services, mental health programming and referrals, testing, and tutoring. An ARC is located on each campus and is staffed by full-time professionals and part-time paraprofessionals who provide a wide variety of academic and personal skill development opportunities.

The WVNCC Academic Resource Center (ARC) provides students with quality academic support services for all who wish to learn in order to become successful and independent learners.

The following goals support our mission:

- individual and interactive academic spaces including a Makerspace
- programs that enhance academic success
- research assistance
- guidance in using their student portal and Brightspace/D2L system
- tutoring support, including an online tutoring option
- accessibility / ADA accommodation support and services

- mentor students through the FYS class, intended to connect students to the college community
- provide counseling and mental health referrals
- make-up testing
- professionals who provide individualized support to students.

Veteran Benefits:

West Virginia Northern Community College welcomes all men and women who have served in the Armed Forces. Whether you are a discharged veteran, still serving on active duty, in the National Guard or Reserves, or a family member, WVNCC is committed to supporting and encouraging your success. Let our institution help you transition back to school successfully.

Currently, the college offers the following programs:

- The Montgomery GI Bill Active Duty, Chapter 30,
- Veterans Educational Assistance Program (VEAP)
- The GI Bill, Chapter 33 (Post 9/11)
- Dependents' Educational Assistance, Chapter 35
- The Montgomery GI Bill-Selected Reserves, Chapter 1606,
- Reserve Educational Assistance Program (REAP), Chapter 1607

Veterans wishing to enter West Virginia Northern Community College should contact the Veteran's Certifying Official for the proper procedure to get their educational benefits processed. Please visit our catalog to learn more about these benefits.

The WVNCC Alumni Association:

The Alumni Association is a permanent link between graduates and the College. The Association's mission is to provide services to West Virginia Northern alumni, students and the communities serviced by the College. The organization fulfills these goals by participating in community service projects, making donations to the College in various ways and working with the Student Senate and administrative offices. Currently one of the main focuses of the Alumni Association is to act as historians for the College. This work involves compiling, maintaining, and exhibiting a collection of B&O Railroad memorabilia, Hazel-Atlas Glass and glass manufactured in the New Martinsville area. The Alumni Association also coordinates programs dedicated to diversity and social justice on all three campuses.

The Association also gives special awards of recognition yearly to current students for outstanding achievements and to former graduates who have gone on to distinguish themselves in their career field. Lifetime membership is available to those who have earned 24 or more credits at West Virginia Northern. Members can actively participate in Alumni work through four standing committees - Membership, Museum, Service (to the community at large and the College), and Ways and Means. For more information about the Alumni Association, visit www.wvncc.edu/alumni.

Policies and Procedures

West Virginia Northern Community College is committed to providing a workplace and educational environment, as well as other benefits, programs, and activities, that are free from sexual harassment and retaliation. To ensure compliance with federal and state civil rights laws and regulations, and to affirm its commitment to promoting the goals of fairness and equity in all aspects of the educational program or activity,

WVNCC is pursuant to the requirements of Titles IV,VI,VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title IX Educational Amendments of 1972, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, does not discriminate against applicants, employees, or students on the basis of race, color, religion, sex disability, gender, ancestry, marital or parental status or national origin in its employment policies and/or educational programs or activities, including admissions to such. Inquiries concerning this rule should be directed to the Chief Human Resource Officer.

Non-Discrimination Statement:

Public Notification of Nondiscrimination in Career-Technical Opportunities

West Virginia Northern Community College adheres to all federal, state, and local civil rights laws prohibiting discrimination in employment and education. West Virginia Northern Community College does not discriminate in its admissions practices [except as permitted by law], in its employment practices, or in its educational programs or activities based on sex/gender. As a recipient of federal financial assistance for education activities, West Virginia Northern Community College is required by Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 to ensure that all its education programs and activities do not discriminate on the basis of sex/gender. Sex includes [sex, sex stereotypes, gender identity, gender expression, sexual orientation, and pregnancy or parenting status].

West Virginia Northern Community College also prohibits retaliation against any person opposing discrimination or participating in any discrimination investigation or complaint process internal or external to the institution. Sexual harassment, sexual assault, dating and domestic violence, and stalking are forms of sex discrimination, which are prohibited under Title IX and by West Virginia Northern Community College policy.

Any member of the campus community, guest, or visitor who acts to deny, deprive, or limit the educational, employment, residential, or social access, opportunities and/or benefits of any member of the West Virginia Northern Community College community on the basis of sex is in violation of the EEOC policy.

Any person may report sex discrimination (whether the person reporting is the person alleged to have experienced the conduct), in person, by mail, by telephone, by video, or by email, using the contact information listed for the Title IX Coordinator (below). A report may be made at any time (including during non-business hours) by filing an incident report at https://www.wvncc.edu/offices-and-services/incident-report/7320. Any questions are to be referred to the Title IX Coordinator.

Appeal Procedures for Discrimination:

Any person who believes that the WV Northern Community College stated policy of non-discrimination has been violated can seek redress through college procedures. Any person may appeal administrative decisions, which are believed to be out of compliance with the provisions of the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, or discrimination, by contacting, personally or in writing, Robert Brak, Director of Human Resources and Development, for the purpose of explaining the complaint. A complainant may at any time seek the assistance of the Director of Human Resources and Development (Affirmative Action Officer) for assistance with a complaint.

Appeal Procedures:

Any individual who has a complaint about discrimination and/or equal opportunity rights should contact the Affirmative Action Officer. 1. If the complaint is directed to the Affirmative Action Offer, he/she shall make an investigation into the matter and respond to the complainant within a period of 10 working days. 2. If the complainant is dissatisfied with the response received from the Affirmative Action Officer, he/she may appeal the matter to the President within 5 working days after the date the response is mailed. 3. In the case of a complaint made directly to the President, or in the case of an appeal to him or her from the response of the Affirmative Action Officer, the President shall investigate the matter, or have it investigated, and respond to the complainant within a period of 10 working days from the date of the complaint or appeal.

Equal Opportunity and Affirmative Action Policy:

West Virginia Northern Community College (the College) provides equal employment opportunities to all qualified employees and applicants and prohibits discrimination and harassment against any such individuals on the basis of protected characteristics. In addition, the College prohibits discrimination against students on the basis of protected characteristics in educational programs and activities, including admissions to such.

The College considers ethnicity, marital status, race, color, religion, sex/gender, national origin, age (40 and over), disability, genetic information, sexual orientation, gender identity and veteran status as protected characteristics and will not permit discrimination or harassment against any employee, applicant or student on the basis of any such characteristic or any other characteristic protected under applicable federal, state or local law.

The scope of this rule prohibiting discrimination and harassment extends, but is not limited to, the following: recruitment, employment, promotion, transfer, training, working conditions, wage and salary administration, benefits, discipline, promotion, transfer, layoff, termination processes, and the application of all other employment-related policies. These principles of non-discrimination and anti-harassment also apply to educational programs and activities and the selection and treatment of independent contractors, personnel working on any College premises, and any other persons or firms doing business with the College.

The College will provide reasonable accommodations to applicants and employees who need them for medical or religious reasons, as required by law.

The College prohibits retaliating against a person who files a complaint of discrimination or harassment or participates in discrimination or harassment proceedings.

The College will conform both to the letter and the spirit of the law and regulations with respect to prohibiting any such discrimination or harassment and will engage in affirmative action to employ, advance in employment, and treat all qualified persons without discrimination in any employment practices.

Reporting:

Individuals wishing to report violations of this rule must be aware that College employees, depending on their roles, have varying reporting responsibilities and abilities to maintain the confidentiality of the individual making the report. Prior to reporting a violation of this rule to a particular employee, an individual should inquire as to whether that employee is bound by certain confidentiality and mandatory reporting requirements.

Any person who believes that the College stated rule of prohibited discrimination or harassment has been violated can seek redress through college procedures.

- 1. Any individual who has a complaint about a possible discrimination and/or equal opportunity or harassment and believed to be out of compliance with the provisions of this rule, should contact the College Equal Employment Opportunity Counselor/Affirmative Action Officer (EEO Counselor/AA Officer) within 10 working days.
- 2. If the discrimination and/or equal opportunity or harassment complaint is against the EEO Counselor/AA Officer, the individual should contact the President.
- 3. The EEO Counselor/AA Officer or President shall make an investigation into the matter and should respond within 10 working days, if possible.
- 4. If the individual is dissatisfied with the response received, the individual may appeal the matter to the President, in writing, within 5 working days of the response.

State Grievance Procedure:

The College strives to provide dispute resolution at the lowest level possible. Nothing in this rule prevents an employee from filing a grievance through the State Employee Grievance procedure.

Authority:

The Chief of Human Resources has been appointed by the President as the Equal Employment Opportunity Counselor/Affirmative Action Officer for the College.

Sanctions:

Sanctions may be imposed upon any person under the College jurisdiction who is found to have violated this rule. Typical student sanctions that may be imposed singly or in combination include, but are not limited to the following:

a. Admonition b. Warning c. Disciplinary Probation d. Restitution e. Suspension f. Expulsion

Typical employee sanctions that may be imposed singly or in combination include, but are not limited to the following:

a. Discussion b. Verbal Warning c. Written Warning d. Suspension e. Termination of Employment

Debt Collection:

West Virginia Northern Community College will be due diligent in collecting any funds (tuition, fees, loans, service, or rental/leasing agreements) owed it. The College will collect tuition and fees consistent with the West Virginia Code and WVNCC Board of Governors rule, "Tuition and Fees-Assessment, Payment, and Refunds" assuring that fees are paid prior to the beginning of classes or arrangements made for payment per the exceptions in that rule. When payment for classes is not made or appropriate arrangements made, then registration will be cancelled.

Until balances are paid or arrangements to pay are made, a "hold" is placed on the account and the ability to receive reports, access services, register for additional classes, or use facilities may be withheld. Holds remain on accounts until paid in full.

Students will be made aware of payments and payments due dates through publications easily available to them, through invoices provided for all services with due dates noted, and through publication of rules regarding consequences of nonpayment in schedules and catalog. Further, students who participate in College endorsed payment plans will be notified at least ten days prior to cancellation of registration if payments are not made according to payment schedule agreement.

For students leaving the College (graduation, withdrawal), particularly recipients of Federal Perkins Loans and National Direct Student Loans, exit interviews will be conducted to explain the personal responsibility and liability for repaying any outstanding College balances and/or loans.

The College may refer to a college-designated third-party agency or an approved contracted collection agency any invoices outstanding 30 days after the "third and final notice" which is given when an invoice is outstanding at 90 days.